
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, February 6, 2014 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Gayle Ortiz 
 Commissioners Mick Routh 

Ron Graves 
  Linda Smith 
  TJ Welch 
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. January 16, 2014 Draft Planning Commission meeting minutes. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 1440 41st Avenue         #13-182        APN: 034-111-50   

Design Permit application for an exterior remodel of the existing Verizon Wireless 
storefront located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Richard Starr 
Representative: Donald Graham, filed:  12/30/2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, February 6, 2014  2 
  

 

 
B. 4200 Auto Plaza Drive       #13-020         APN: 034-141-30 and 31 

Amendment to Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Sign Program as part of a 
project to demolish an existing car dealership building and construct a new car 
dealership building, including a service building, carwash, and parking lot improvements 
in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Charles Canfield, filed 1/24/2014 
Representative: Bob Fischer 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 1550 McGregor Drive        #13-174        APN: 036-341-02 

Design Permit, Tree Permit, and Coastal Development Permit for a public park (skate, 
dog, and children’s park) in the PF/VS (public facilities/visitor serving) zoning district. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: City of Capitola  
Representative:  Steve Jesberg 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, March 6, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

  



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, February 6, 2014  3 
  

 

 
 

 
APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 
All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 
Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1st 
Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings can also be viewed 
from the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



  
 
 
Chairperson Routh called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order at 7 p.m.     
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners:  Gayle Ortiz, Linda Smith and TJ Welch and Chairperson Mick Routh 
Absent:    Ron Graves 
 
A. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

Commissioner Smith nominated Commissioner Ortiz as chair, seconded by Commissioner 
Welch. Commissioner Ortiz nominated Commissioner Smith as vice chair, seconded by 
Commissioner Welch. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Ortiz, Routh, Smith and Welch. 
No: None. Abstain: None. 

2.  Committee Appointments 

       a. Traffic and Parking Commission 

b. Arts and Cultural Commission 

A motion to retain current appointments of Commissioner Graves to the Traffic and Parking 
Commission and Commissioner Smith to the Arts and Cultural Commission was made by 
Commissioner Welch and seconded by Chairperson Ortiz. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh, Smith and Welch and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None. 

   
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None 
 

B. Public Comments - None 
 

C. Commission Comments - None 
 

D. Staff Comments - None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. November 21, 2013, Joint Planning Commission and City Council Minutes  
General Plan Special Meeting 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 16, 2014 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

A motion to approve the Nov. 21, 2013, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Smith 
and seconded by Commissioner Welch.  
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh, Smith and Welch and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 

B. December 5, 2013, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
 
A motion to approve the Dec. 5, 2013, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Smith and 
seconded by Commissioner Welch.  
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Smith and Welch and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: Commissioner Routh 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
   

A. 822 Bay Avenue          #13-172          APN: 036-011-28 
Sign application for a new wall sign at the Quality Inn and Suites in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Dan Patel 
Representative:  Mike Terron, filed 12/02/13 

 
A motion to approve project application #13-172 with the following conditions and findings 
was made by Commissioner Welch and seconded by Commissioner Routh: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of 14 square foot wall sign located on the porte-cochere of the 
hotel at 822 Bay Avenue.   The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on January 16, 2014, except as modified 
through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Three signs are approved for the property at 822 Bay Avenue.  Additional signs at this location 
shall be approved by the Planning Commission.  The approved signs include:  

a. One (1) Wall Sign on the porte-cochere at the entrance of the building.  Sign size is 14 
square feet.  Internally illuminated cabinet sign. 

b. One (1) Monument Sign at the corner of Hill Street and the driveway entrance. The 
size of the sign is 3’10” x 10’. 

c. One (1) Directional Sign along the driveway.  Sign height is 4’ 6”.  The size of the sign 
face is 1’6” x 4’.  

 
3. Prior to installation, a building permit shall be secured for the new sign authorized by this 

permit. Final building plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by the Planning 
Commission.   

 
4. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 
and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-172 shall be 
paid in full. 
 

FINDINGS 
 

A. The special signage, as designed and conditioned, is necessary and appropriate for the 
subject commercial site, in order to allow the site and the businesses located within it 
to be competitive with other businesses of a similar nature located elsewhere, and/or to 
be competitive with industry standards governing sale of the merchandise offered at 
the site. 

 
The hotel is located 250 feet from the street frontage.  The sign is necessary and appropriate 
for the hotel to remain competitive with other businesses of a similar nature.  The sign will 
provide clarity to visitors of the location of the hotel that is currently unmarked.    

 
B. The special signage, as designed and conditioned, will not have a significant adverse 

effect on the character and integrity of the surrounding area. This subsection C does 
not allow approval of: signs over sixteen feet high, sound signs, abandoned signs, 
balloon signs greater than fifteen inches in diameter, or freestanding signs. 

 
The special sign will not have a significant adverse effect on the character and integrity of the 
surrounding area.  The hotel is located 250 feet from the street.  The sign will be faintly visible 
from the street. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh, Smith, and Welch and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 

B. 504 Bay Avenue          #13-176          APN: 036-062-40 
Design Permit application for a minor addition (63 square feet) to the existing 
Commercial Building (Gayle’s Bakery) in the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Upper Village Shops, Joint Venture 
Representative: Joe Ortiz, filed:  12/11/2013 

 
A motion to approve project application #13-176 with the following conditions and findings 
was made by Commissioner Smith and seconded by Commissioner Welch: 
 

CONDITIONS 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a 63 square-foot addition to a Commercial 

Building.  The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Commission on January 16, 2014, except as modified through 
conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for modifications to the structure as 
authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by 
the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements shall be completed 
according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 
full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

4. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 
and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

5.  Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-176 shall be 
paid in full. 
 

6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Water 
District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
7. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official.  

 
8. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 

be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 
 

9. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

10. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 
FINDINGS 

A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the   
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the 
development standards of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General 
Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the 
development standards of the NC (Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of 
the area.  The area is defined by a neighborhood commercial uses adjacent to residential. 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e)(2) of the California  
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Section 15301(e)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts interior or exterior alterations to existing 
structures.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed 
project. 

 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh, Smith, and Welch and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

A. 1730 Wharf Road          #13-169          APN: 035-111-14 
Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for a new single-family home in the  
R-1/AR (Single Family/Automatic Review) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Bruce Golino 
Representative: Courtney Hughes, William Fisher Architecture, filed: 11/26/2013 
 

Both Chairperson Ortiz and Commissioner Smith own property in proximity to the project and 
therefore recused themselves. However, that would leave the Planning Commission without a 
quorum, so it invoked the rule of necessity. Senior Planner Cattan explained the process and the 
affected commissioners drew straws. Commissioner Smith was selected to participate and establish a 
quorum, and Chairperson Ortiz withdrew. 
 
Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report. She highlighted the differences between the Visitor 
Serving zoning of the adjacent Shadowbrook Restaurant and the application lot’s R-1 zoning. The 
Shadowbrook’s trolley is an existing nonconformity along the shared lot line. She also reviewed the 
requirements for the riparian corridor on the lot’s Soquel Creek frontage. She explained that although 
the design is five stories, they are stepped to keep the home within the 25-foot height requirement. 
She noted that commissioners received public comment from the Shadowbrook.  
 
Commissioner Routh asked if there was a plan to handle excavation and if a management plan will be 
required. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked that the address of the lot be confirmed. She clarified that the required 
setback of roughly 4.5 feet is unaffected by the existing nonconformity. 
 
Commissioner Smith opened the public hearing. 
 
Architect William Fisher and designer Courtney Hughes spoke on behalf of the applicant. They offered 
images reflecting the street view as it would appear with the home built and an Illustration showing the 
path of trolley travel against the side of the proposed home. They noted the landscape plan calls for 
dense plantings between the trolley and the home. 
 
Commissioner Routh recommended that plant types be evaluated for the spread of roots at full size to 
protect both the trolley’s track and home’s foundation.  
 
A neighbor who lives across the creek from the proposed home complemented the design, but 
expressed concern about erosion control. Noting that homes further up the creek have experienced 
problems, he asked that soils reports and compaction assure that work on the home during 
construction or later runoff will not trigger a slide.  
 

-5-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Commissioner Smith asked how the soils concerns are handled. Community Development Director 
Rich Grunow noted that strict sedimentation requirements must be followed for Soquel Creek. The 
building process will review soil types and compaction. 
 
Mike Clark, owner of the Shadowbrook property, complimented the design. He said privacy and noise 
would be a concern for the proposed home’s occupants with the trolley path, but felt steps can be 
taken to lessen the impact. His greatest concern is potential impact upon the trolley structures. 
 
Ted Burke, Shadowbrook business owner, reiterated the concerns about erosion in the comments he 
had previously provided. He asked for assurance that the plan allows enough room to tie back a large 
foundation on a wet hillside. He supports efforts to avoid possible future complaints about noise from 
restaurant patrons. He also voiced concerns about impact on the trolley structure. 
  
Mr. Fisher offered to remove the window that faces the trolley and said the home’s foundation 
technique should not impact the trolley. 
 
Commissioner Smith closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Routh said he considers the Shadowbrook and its cable car iconic Capitola and 
worries about the 4.5-foot setback. He would like to see a soils report and structural engineering. He 
would also have considered allowing a variance that moved the home closer to the other side of the 
lot. 
 
Commissioner Welch said he has faith that the engineering will be handled appropriately before 
construction is allowed. He said even additional setbacks may not be sufficient to address noise 
concerns. 
 
Commissioner Smith said she shares concerns about protecting the Shadowbrook. She agreed that 
future residents of the applicant property will likely complain about privacy and noise in spite of fact 
that they bought next to a visitor serving location. She would like engineering assurance that the cable 
car structure would not be undermined.  
 
Following further discussion, Commissioners Routh and Smith said they could likely support the 
project if it were located further from the trolley and would consider granting a variance for 
encroaching into the opposite setback. 

 
A motion to deny project application #13-169 without prejudice was made by Commissioner 
Routh and seconded by Commissioner Smith. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh and Smith. No: 
Commissioner Welch. Abstain: None. 
 

B. 305 Fanmar Way          #13-026          APN: 035-161-14 
Plan revision to a previously approved Design Permit for remodel and addition to a 
single-family dwelling in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Property Owner:  Peter Wilk, filed 12/6/13 
Representative:  Peter Wilk 

Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report and outlined the differences between proposed and 
as-built. She noted Mr. Wilk provided correspondence that addressed the reasons for the change in 
the garage door. 
 

-6-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

Chairperson Ortiz noted that the style of doors in back and trash enclosure appear different from the 
proposed plan. 
 
Commissioner Routh expressed frustration about a recurring problem of homes not built to approved 
design and his desire to put “teeth” in the enforcement process. 
 
Director Grunow said the City enforces its standards by denying a certificate of occupancy. 
 
Commissioners expressed support for additional ways of alerting both the applicant and contractors to 
the expectations, including forms attached to building plans.  
 
Chairperson Ortiz opened the public hearing. 
 
Applicant Peter Wilk said he was surprised at the comments and felt he tried to be consistent about 
what the neighborhood desires. He did not realize the commission was interested in the level of detail 
of materials. He noted the neighborhood has many garage doors similar to the one he installed. 
 
The applicant and commission discussed elements that changed from the initial approved design. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Smith said the commission wants to emphasize to applicants than an exterior 
appearance change comes back to the Commission for review and approval. 
 
Chairperson Ortiz said she believes the carriage-style garage door, siding and railings should be as 
approved. The outside of a home is a reflection on the whole community, which is why the 
Commission reviews it. 
 
Commissioner Routh concurred. He felt the approved plan added character, and the result does not.  
 
Commissioner Smith agreed that she would not have supported the design as built. 
 
Commissioner Welch shared the frustration with changes made after approval, but would support a 
continuance for a new proposal. 
 
A motion to deny the as-built changes to project application #13-026 was made by Chairperson 
Ortiz and seconded by Commissioner Routh. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Routh and Smith and 
Chairperson Ortiz. No: Commissioner Welch. Abstain: None. 
 
6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Director Grunow shared an opportunity for commissioners to attend a training. 
 
He noted the City Council passed plans to waive building fees for solar panels, solar hot water, 
and vehicle charging stations. It also specifically prohibited commercial marijuana cultivation. 
 
Staff will be adding a half-time assistant planner next month. 
 
The General Plan Update draft and EIR have been released for public comment. He asked 
commissioners to let him know if they would be available for a special meeting Mar. 20, 2014, 
should the level of comments allow the draft to be discussed at that point. 

-7-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Jan. 16, 2014  8 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2014\DRAFT Minutes\1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 
7.  COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS  

 
Commissioner Routh noted Commissioner Graves has been ill and is wished a speedy recovery. 
 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. to the regular meeting of the 
Planning Commission to be held on Thursday, Feb. 6, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on Feb. 6, 2014. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minute Clerk 

-8-

Item #: 3.A. 1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 6, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 1440 41st Avenue Suite B #13-182   APN: 034-111-50 

Design Permit application for an exterior remodel of the existing Verizon Wireless store 
frontage located at 1440 41st Avenue Suite B in the CC (Community Commercial) 
Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Richard Starr 
Representative: Donald Graham, filed:  12/30/2013 

 

APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The Design Permit application is for the exterior remodel of the existing Verizon Wireless store at 
1440 41st Avenue within the Starr Plaza.  The Verizon Wireless store, located within suite A, 
underwent a complete remodel and expanded into suite B.  There are currently two entrances into the 
retail store. The applicant would like to remove the entrance doors from suite B and maintain a single 
entrance into the retail store.  The existing doors will be replaced with new windows that match the 
existing storefront windows on the building.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On January 22, 2014, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   
 

 City Design Representative, Derek Van Alstine, was not available to attend the meeting.   

 City Landscape Architect.  Current vacancy on committee. 

 City Public Works Director, Steve Jesberg, reviewed the plans and did not request any 
changes.  

 City Building Official, Mark Wheeler, reviewed the plans and did not request any changes.  
 

DISCUSSION 
The Starr Plaza was originally approved through a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  Within the CC 
(Community Commercial) zoning district, an exterior modification to an approved CUP requires 
approval of a Design Permit by the Planning Commission.   
 
In 2013, the Verizon Wireless store at 1440 41st Avenue completed an extensive internal remodel and 
expansion combining suites A and B into a single commercial suite.  Due to the new internal layout of 
the store, the applicant is proposing to modify the existing double door entrance of suite B to 
storefront windows.  The entrance currently has aluminum storefront windows on either side of the 
doorway.  The applicant would like to replace the double door with two new aluminum windows that 
match the architectural style of the existing storefront.   
 

-9-

Item #: 4.A. 1440 41st Avenue.pdf



 

There are no additional exterior modifications proposed within the application.  The application does 
not require review of the zoning development standards for setbacks, parking, and landscaping due to 
no proposed changes to the site or building area.   
 
The following 41st Avenue Design Guidelines for architecture are applicable to the design review by 
the Planning Commission: 
 

1. Architectural consistency for all sides of the building must be carried out with colors, materials 
and details.  Facades or fronts unrelated to the rest of the building shall not be used.   
Staff Analysis: The new aluminum windows will match the existing windows on the building. 
   

2. Materials, colors and textures shall be consistent with the building’s design theme.  
Staff Analysis: The new windows are consistent with the building’s architectural theme.  The 
windows will match the color, tint, and architectural style of the existing storefront windows. 
 

7. Buildings shall use design elements in public areas which provide a sense of human scale 
(insets, overhangs).  Elements of pedestrian interest shall be included at ground floor levels 
(courtyards, display windows). 
Staff Analysis: Pedestrian interest will be captured with the new display windows at the ground 
level.  The existing roof overhang will not be altered.  
 

The proposed modification will complement the architecture of the Starr Plaza.  The entry does not 
have any additional architectural features, such as a decorative cornice or pediment, which would 
clearly delineate the entryway from a storefront. The size of the door openings will not change; 
therefore a future change in tenants would allow for a simple conversion of the windows back to 
doors.      

 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor alterations to existing structures provided that 
the alteration involves negligible or no expansion of the existing use.  This project involves a 
modification of an entrance to windows.  There is no addition proposed.  No adverse environmental 
impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-182 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of modifying the double door entrance of suite B to storefront 
windows at the Verizon Store located at 1440 41st Avenue.   The proposed project is approved 
as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on 
February 6, 2014, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning 
Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Two windows are approved for the property at 1440 41st Avenue. The two windows will match 
the existing aluminum storefront windows in materials, tint, and architectural design.   

 
3. Prior to installation, a building permit shall be secured for the two windows authorized by this 

permit. Final building plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by the Planning 
Commission.   

 
4. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  

-10-

Item #: 4.A. 1440 41st Avenue.pdf



 

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require Planning Commission 
approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-182 shall be 
paid in full. 

 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the Zoning 

Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the 
development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Conditions of 
approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General 
Plan. 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the 
development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the commercial character 
and integrity of the area.  The area is defined by a neighborhood commercial uses. 
 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e)(2) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor alterations to existing structures 
provided that the alteration involves negligible or no expansion of the existing use.  This 
project involves a modification of an entrance to windows.  There is no addition proposed.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Floor Plans and Elevation 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner                   
 

 

-11-

Item #: 4.A. 1440 41st Avenue.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-12-



-13-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Floor Plan and Elevation.pdf



-14-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Floor Plan and Elevation.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 6, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 4200 Auto Plaza Drive #13-020   APN: 034-141-30 and 31 

Amendment to Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Sign Program as part of a 
project to demolish an existing car dealership building and construct a new car 
dealership building, including a service building, carwash, and parking lot 
improvements in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Charles Canfield, filed 1/24/2014 
Representative: Bob Fischer 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The application is an amendment to the original Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Sign 
Program for the Toyota dealership located at 4200 Auto Plaza Drive within the CC (Community 
Commercial) zoning district.  The amendment includes a modification to the building with an additional 
4,350-square-foot area located in the southeast corner of the property and the exterior building 
design.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 7, 2013, the Planning Commission approved a Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and 
Sign Program for the new Toyota dealership.  Within the original approval, the Planning Commission 
added 9 conditions of approval to ensure the redevelopment would complement the adjacent land 
use.  (Exhibit B. Final Action Notice)  
 
DISCUSSION 
The additional 4,350-square-foot area is being proposed to allow 4 additional bays and open floor 
area within the auto service section of the building.  The addition is located on the rear southeast 
corner of the building and will not be visible from the right-of-way.  The addition squares off the rear 
corner of the building and does not extend past the approved wall plane for the rear and side wall of 
previously approved plans.  There are no garage door openings proposed on the south elevation 
adjacent to the Loma Vista Estates residential development. The plans include one garage door on 
the east elevation, consistent with the original approval.     
 
The design of the dealership is established by Toyota as part of its corporate imaging and branding.  
During the creation of building plans, the dealership further refined the design with a few modifications 
to the location and/or dimension of a few windows and doors.  The applicant has submitted updated 
elevations for Planning Commission review.   
 
  

-15-

Item #: 4.B. 4200 Autoplaza Drive.pdf



 

The addition is in compliance with the development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) 
zoning district, as identified in the following table: 

   Zone Regulation Project Proposal 
Height   
 40’ maximum 23’ 
Setbacks   

Side yard 10’ minimum 68’ 
Rear yard 10’ minimum 55’ 

 
During the March 7, 2013, approval by the Planning Commission, nine additional conditions of 
approval were added to ensure the redevelopment would complement the adjacent land use.  The 
applicant has added additional details of the trash enclosure and carwash to demonstrate that the 
conditions of approval required at the time of building plan submittal are being met.  The trash 
enclosure will be located on the west side of the new building.  The carwash is located further from 
the rear property line and will be completely enclosed.  All conditions of approval of the original 
application continue to apply and are listed appropriately below.    
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15302(b) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts replacement of a commercial structure with a new 
structure of substantially the same size, purpose, and capacity.  This project involves demolition of a 
car dealership and the construction of a dealership that is substantially the same size, as well as 
serves the same purpose and capacity.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-020 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of a Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and a Sign Program as 

part of a project to demolish an existing car dealership building and construct a new car dealership 
building, including a service building, carwash, and parking lot improvements at 4200 Auto Plaza 
Drive. 

 
2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 

by the Planning Commission. 
 
3. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 

4. Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and fall 
within the city permitted decibel levels. 

 
5. Lighting shall be shielded to prevent light from shining on to neighboring properties.  The applicant 

agrees to make the necessary adjustment required by the Community Development Director 
regarding shielding.   

 
6. Sandwich board and other movable freestanding signs are prohibited.   
 
7. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement. 

-16-

Item #: 4.B. 4200 Autoplaza Drive.pdf



 

 
8. Curb, gutter and sidewalk shall be replaced to meet ADA standards to the satisfaction of the 

Public Works Director. 
 

9. An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 
 

10. A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director.  The grade along the eastern property line shall be designed to prevent 
potential drainage issues with the neighboring residential properties.   

 
11. The final landscape plan submitted with the building permit application shall include the specific 

number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized.  The 
approved landscaping and operational irrigation system shall be installed prior to final occupancy. 

 
12. The applicant shall enter into a landscape maintenance agreement and a cash deposit of 

$2,000.00 shall be retained by the City to cover costs of replacing or maintaining landscaping for a 
period of three (3) years after project completion.  The agreement and deposit shall be completed 
prior to final occupancy. 

 
13. All landscaping must be maintained and non-maintenance will be a basis for review by the 

Planning Commission. 
 
14. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director including the removal of 
the existing building on site. 

 
15. The Community Development Director shall approve the relocation and/or screening of the 

carwash/detail facility prior to issuing a building permit.   
 

16. Parking located in the front of the building designed for customers will not be used for display of 
automobiles.   

 
17. No public address system will be used at this dealership. 

 
18. The project shall be designed to eliminate any horn honking when going around building corners.  

Applicant shall install mirrors or other devices as necessary to eliminate the need to honk a horn 
to safely go around a corner. 

 
19. All employees will receive necessary training to eliminate accidentally setting off car alarms. 

 
20. Surveillance cameras shall be positioned so that they do not record the activities in individual 

mobile home units in the Loma Vista Mobile Home Park.   
 

21. No deliveries shall be made within 200 feet of the Loma Vista Mobile Home Park during the hours 
of 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. 

 
22. No car repairs shall be made during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.  

 
23. No employees shall play music that can be heard off the dealership property. 

 
24. No tree trimming shall take place without first giving a five-day advance notice to the Loma Vista 

Mobile Home Park Association. 
 

-17-

Item #: 4.B. 4200 Autoplaza Drive.pdf



 

25. The location of the trash enclosure shall be approved by the Community Development Director 
and shall not be located next to the Loma Vista Mobile Home Park.   
 

FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development 
standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

 
Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 
Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development standards of the 
CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure 
that the project maintains the character and integrity of the area. 
 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15302(b) of the California   

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

 
Section 15302(b) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts replacement of a commercial structure with a new 
structure of substantially the same size, purpose, and capacity.  This project involves demolition of a 
car dealership and the construction of a dealership that is substantially the same size, as well as 
serves the same purpose and capacity.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
review of the proposed project  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Site and Architectural Plans 
B.  March 7, 2013, Original Approved Set of Plans. 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner                   
 
 

-18-

Item #: 4.B. 4200 Autoplaza Drive.pdf



-19-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-20-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-21-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-22-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-23-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-24-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-25-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-26-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-27-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-28-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



� �

�����������	�
�		��������	����
�	����� ��	����
��
�������������������
���	���� �� ������ ������ ���� ���� ������ ������ ���
� ���
� ����� ����� ����� ����� �	��
� �	��
� ���� ���� 
����	�
�����
�����������	
����
��������	 ��	 ���� ���� ���	 ���	 �������� �������� ����� ����� ����	� ����	� ����� ����� ����� ����� ������� ������� 
�� 
�� 
����	�
������	��	���	��������
������

-29-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-30-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-31-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



�������

� !"!�" # $% &' () * +(,-./.-012304-05678 &9
:; <=>? @>; ABCABDABEF (('G &HI J' ( I +JKLE MJN (OPQRSRTU VWXYZ [\][^\_`]abc`defcgdh]d\gibj]gj YkZlmnopmqrmstmunvwxuyz{|Z{}~kX��W{��Y�Y ������������������������������ D��� ���ms���m�������� �m�¡s�t

¢£ ¤¥ ¤¦§¤̈¤¥ ©¢ª«
¬ ®¥ ¯£ ¨°¥±£² ³µ́¶·̧¹º·±̧·»¼½¾ ¿ÀÁÂ ÃÄÃÀÅ Æ¹Ç¼È¼É

ºµ»»µ̧̧·»¼
±¹ÊËÌÍ Î± ©̈¤®¦¥ ®¤Ï£ ©£ ¯Ð£ Ñ©¶ Ò¦Ñ©®®©®» Ò¦Ó ̈¤¤º ®©Ô¤» ³®¥² ¤

±£ Ï̄£ ÒÏÔ¤®¤Õ££Ö±×
Æ ¤©± ©§¤̄Ð ¤®

×¼Ø¼̧̧¹·±Æ ©̄ÐÙØµÚ̧¢ºµª¼ØÆ ¼ ®£ ¤̈®̄Ó ©®§£ ¦̄Ó£ ©̄Ò¦Ö¼È
Æ ©̄¥ ©´ ©®Í ©®©¢ ©£ ¦³

± ©̄¥ ©̄©Ï̄¥ ¤§£Ð ¤̄¦£ ¦«±» ± ©§©̄Ð Ò² ©» Ò̄¦¥ ¤©ÐÖ±·
Æ Ï©²²± ©§¤̄Ð ¤®

Û ÜÝÞ ßàÜáâã äå âß ÖæÆ ¤¤¦° ¤¤¥ ¦±çè ®Ð ¤¥ ©£² ¦©̄Ð±Ëè ®¦Ô¤Ñ¦ é Êæ¼ Î©Ñ¥² Ñ©¥£ ̄è Ô² ©̄¥ ¦̄¦£¥ ¤¥ Í ¤©Ðê Ò¦¥ ¤Ð ¦©¦¥ Í ¤¦¥ Ñ®Ð£ ©̄¥ ¤ë£¥°£ ®®£ ©̈¥£ ̄ÑÏÔ̄¤̄¥
² Ñ©¥£ ̄¦ ì²£ ¨°¥ ¦ ìÐ ®©£ ©̈̄¤è ¤©¥ Ò®¤¦ ì©̄Ð ¦ë©² ¤¦ çæÚ ¦¤ç£ Ñ̄°Ð ¤¤ÔÏÒ² Ñ°£ ©̄²² Ô² ©̄¥£ ¯̈©®¤©¦ é× ®§£Ð ¤ë̄¤®ë£¥°Ð£èè ¤®¤̄¥ ÏÒ² Ñ° ¦©ÏÔ² ¤¦©̄Ð

Ô®£ Ñ¤¦£ Ñ̄² ÒÐ£ ¯̈Ð ©®ÓÍ ®ë̄» ©° ̈̄³Ð ³¤Ðí ̄Ð ¤®» Ò² Ñ°è ®Ïª£ ¦£ ̄Ø ¤Ñ³Ñ²£ ¯̈©¥¥° ¤Æ ©̄¥ ©
º ®ÒÕº Ò̄¥ ³± ©̄Ðè£²²£ ¯í ©¥ ¦̄§£²² ¤ éÚ ¦¤ÏÒ² Ñ°¥ ³Ô¤£ ¯Í£ ®¤¥ ¤̄¥£ ̄©®¤©¦¥° ©¥Ð ¤¦̄¥è² ©¥ é

Ëæ¹ ¦̄¥ ©²² Ô² ©̄¥ ¦è ®©²² Ô² ©̄¥ Ñ£ ®Ñ² ¤¦¦° ë̄̄¥° ¤Ô² ©̄¤§¤̄£è¥° ¤³©®¤̄î¥² ©Í ¤² ¤Ð éº ©²²è ®
Ñ² ©®£è£ Ñ©¥£ ̄ é¬ ®Í£ÐÐ£ ¯̈ÔÒ®Ô¦¤¦ ì£è ̄̄¤£ ¦©§©£² ©Í² ¤¥ ©̄¦ë¤®ïÒ¤¦¥£ ̄¦ ì©¦¦ÒÏ¤¥° ©¥ ©̄³

Ô² ©̄¥ Ñ£ ®Ñ² ¤¦Ñ©² ¤Ð² ¤¦¦¥° ©̄ðî ë£Ð ¤£ ¦« ©̈² é¦£ Õ¤©̄Ð ©̄³Ñ£ ®Ñ² ¤¦Ñ©² ¤Ð² ©®̈¤®£ ¦Ö« ©̈² é¦£ Õ¤
«æ¶° ¤Ô² ©̄£ ¦¦Ñ° ¤Ï©¥£ Ñ é¢ ̄î¥£ ¦̄¥ ©²² Ô² ©̄¥ ¦¥ Ñ² ¦¤¥ ¤Ð ¤̈¦è Ô©§£ ¯̈®Í Ò£²Ð£ ¯̈¦ é´ ¤¦Ò®¤

Ô² ©̄¥ ¦©®¤̄¥Í² ÑÓ£ ¯̈¦Ô®£ ¯Ó² ¤®¦¤ÎÑ¤¦¦£ §¤² ³ñ ̄¦Ô®£ ¯Ó² ¤®¦̄¥°£ ¦Ô² ©̄æ éÈ ¤¤Ô§©² §¤¦©̄Ð ïÒ£ ÑÓ
ÑÒÔ² ¤®¦©ë©³è ®Ï¥ ®¤¤¦ é òæ¶° ¤Ô² ©̄¥ ¦ë£²²Ð Í ¤¥¥ ¤®£è¥° ¤³° ©§¤̈ÐÐ ®©£ ©̈̄¤ é¢ ̄î¥ Ô² ©̄¥¥° ¤Ï¥ ² ë®£ ¯Ð ¤Ô®¤¦¦¤Ð

©®¤©¦ é¹è Ô¦¦£Í² ¤ ìÔ² ©̄¥¥° ¤Ï̄² ëÏÒ̄Ð ¤Ð ©®¤©¦¥ Ô®§£Ð ¤Í ¤¥¥ ¤®Ð ®©£ ©̈̄¤©̄ÐÐ£ Ò̈Ô¥° ¤¦£²
¥° ©¥£ ¦©²² ©®Ò̄Ð¥° ¤Ï¦£¥î ¦̄¥ ¦ÑÏÔ©Ñ¥ ¤Ð é óæÆ ¤¤¦Ô¤Ñ¦ éÑ̄Ñ¤®̄£ ¯̈¦£² ©Ï¤̄Ð Ï¤̄¥ ¦©̄Ðè ¤®¥£²£ Õ¤® é¬ ®Í£ÐÐ£ ¯̈ÔÒ®Ô¦¤¦Ò̄¥£²¥° ¤¦£²

è ¤®¥£²£¥ ³¥ ¤¦¥£ ¦Ð ̄¤ ìÍ£Ðò ÑÒÍ£ Ñ³©®Ð ¦è ¯£¥ ®²£ Õ¤Ð ®¤Ð ëÐ ¦©ëÐ Ò¦¥ ©̄ÐÖò ÔÒ̄Ð ¦èÖÊ ôÖÊ ôÖÊ
è ¤®¥£²£ Õ¤®¥£²² ¤Ð£ ¯¥ ¥° ¤¥ ÔòÌ¥ ðÌ è ¦£² ©è¥ ¤®®£ ÔÔ£ ¯̈¦£²¥ ÖÊÌÐ ¤¤Ô é¶° ¤Í£ ®¤¥ ¤̄¥£ ̄©®¤©¦° ©§¤

©¦Ô¤Ñ£ ©² ¦£² Ï£ Î éÆ ¤¤º£ §£²×² ©̄¦©̄Ð¢ ¤¥ ©£² ¦ é ðæ¶ ®¤¤¦©̄Ð ¦° ®ÒÍ ¦¥° ©¥ ©®¤¥ ®¤Ï©£ ©̄®¤¥ Í ¤Ô®¥ ¤Ñ¥ ¤Ð ë£¥°¥ ¤ÏÔ®©®³Ñ° ©£ ¯²£ ¯Óè ¤̄Ñ¤®¦¥ ¤¤²
Ô¦¥ ¦©̄Ð ®©̈̄¤Ô² ©¦¥£ ÑÑ̄¦¥ ®ÒÑ¥£ ̄è ¤̄Ñ£ ¯̈Ô² ©Ñ¤Ð ©¥¥° ¤¤Ð ¤̈¦è¥° ¤¥ ®¤¤Ñ©̄Ô³®Ô² ©̄¥ ¤®¦

¥° ¤³©®¤£ ¯Ð ¤Ô¤̄Ð£ ¯̈̄¥° ¤¦£¥ Ò©¥£ ̄©̄Ð ë° ©¥£ ¦Ô¦¦£Í² ¤ õæ¶° ¤®¤©®¤Ô² ©̄¥ ¤®¦Í ¤£ ¯̈£ ¦̄¥ ©²² ¤Ð ë° ¤®¤¥° ¤®¤° ©¦Í ¤¤̄·º Ô©§£ ¯̈ é¹ ¯¥° ¤¦¤©®¤©¦®¤Ï§¤
¤Î£ ¦¥£ ¯̈Ô©§£ ¯̈©̄ÐÍ ©¦¤®ÑÓ é·² ¦®¤Ï§¤©̄³ÑÏÔ©Ñ¥ ¤Ð ¦£²Ð ë̄¥ ©Ð ¤Ô¥° è ©¥² ¤©¦¥ÖÊ

£ Ñ̄° ¤¦ é¹ ¦̄¥ ©²²² ©Ï®¦©̄Ð ³² ©Ï¥ Ô¦£² ìÏÒ̄Ð£ ¯̈£¥ ©̄Ð² ¤©§£ ¯̈¤̄Ò̈° ®Ï©¥¥° ¤¤Ð ¤̈¦è
¥° ¤Ô² ©̄¥ ¤®è ®¥° ¤¥ ÔÐ ®¤¦¦ÏÒ² Ñ° ¦£¥Ð ¤¦̄î¥ ¦Ô£²² Ò¥ è¥° ¤Ô² ©̄¥ ¤® éº ÏÔ©Ñ¥¥° ¤¥ Ô¦£²

¤̄Ò̈° ¦£¥Ð ¤¦̄î¥ ¦¤¥¥² ¤² ©¥ ¤®Í Ò¥ ̄¥ ¦ÏÒÑ°¥° ©¥£¥£ ¦̄î¥ ̈Ð¥ ̈®ëÔ² ©̄¥ ¦£ ¯ é· Ï¤̄Ð¥° ¤¥ Ô
ò¥ ð£ Ñ̄° ¤¦è¥ Ô¦£² ©¦Ô¤®¥° ¤¦£²è ¤®¥£²£¥ ³¥ ¤¦¥£ ¯̈®¤ÑÏÏ¤̄Ð ©¥£ ̄¦ éÉ ÒÏ©³ë©̄¥¥ £ ¦̄¥ ©²²

¥° ¤Ð ®£ Ô£ ®®£ ©̈¥£ ̄Ô®£ ®¥ £ ¦̄¥ ©²²£ ¯̈¥° ¤¥ Ôè ¤ë£ Ñ̄° ¤¦è¥ Ô¦£² é
Ööæí° ¤̄®¤Ï§£ ¯̈Ô©§£ ¯̈ ìÍ ©¦¤®ÑÓ ì©̄Ð ¦£²£¥£ ¦§¤®³£ ÏÔ®¥ ©̄¥¥ Ó ̄ëë° ¤®¤©²²¥° ¤Ò¥£²£¥ ³²£ ¤̄¦

©®¤©̄Ð ̄¥¥ Ð ©Ï©̈¤¥° ¤Ï é ÖÖæ¶° ¤®¤©®¤Êõ ¤Î£ ¦¥£ ¯̈¥ ®¤¤¦Í ¤£ ¯̈®¤Ï§¤Ðñ ¦¤¤¼ Î£ ¦¥£ ¯̈¶ ®¤¤±£ ¦¥ ̄¥°£ ¦Ô©̈¤æ é¶° ¤®¤©®¤«ð
¤̄ëÊËÌÍ Î¥ ®¤¤¦Í ¤£ ¯̈£ ¦̄¥ ©²² ¤Ð ©¦®¤Ô² ©Ñ¤Ï¤̄¥¥ ®¤¤¦ñ ¦¤¤×² ©̄¥±£ ¦¥æ é¶°£ ¦®¤Ô² ©Ñ¤Ï¤̄¥¥ ®¤¤

ïÒ©̄¥£¥ ³£ ¦Í ©¦¤Ð ̄©Ê ÷Ö ®©¥£ èÊ ¤̄ë¥ ®¤¤¦®¤Ô² ©Ñ£ ¯̈¤©Ñ°¥ ®¤¤¥° ©¥£ ¦®¤Ï§¤Ð é
ÖÊǽ Ò²Ð ¤®¦£ ¯£́ ®¤¥ ¤̄¥£ ̄©®¤©¦ ôÚ ¦¤Æ ̄Ï©¬£ ¤²ÐÆ¥ ̄¤Í Ò²Ð ¤®¦¥° ©¥ ©§¤®©̈¤Êî ÎÊî Îçî£ ¯

¦£ Õ¤ é× ¦£¥£ ̄¥° ¤Ï¦Ô©®Ó ¤Ð Ñ©®¦ë£²² ̄¥°£¥¥° ¤Ï£è¥° ¤³§¤®° ©̈̄¤Ð ¤̈è Ô©§£ ¯̈ é× ¦£¥£ ̄¥° ¤Ï
¦ÒÑ°¥° ©¥¥° ¤Ð ©®ÓÍ ®ë̄ ì¯£ Ñ¤®² Ó£ ¯̈Ô©®¥ è¥° ¤ÏÑ©̄Í ¤¦¤¤̄©̄Ð¥° ¤²£ ¨¥° ¤®Í ®ë̄Ô©®¥¥° ©¥

ë©¦Í Ò®£ ¤Ð£ ¯̄©¥ Ò®¤ë£²²Í ¤² ¤¦¦§£ ¦£Í² ¤®Í Ò®£ ¤Ð é×² ©Ñ¤¤̄Ò̈°Ð£ ®¥ ©®Ò̄Ð¥° ¤Í ©¦¤®Ð ¤Ô®¤¦¦
¥° ¤Ï£ ¯¥° ¤Ð£ ®¥ ¤̄Ò̈°¥ ©ÔÔ¤©®¦¥ ©Í² ¤ é · ©̈Ô©̄¥° Ò¦ø Ò¤¤̄· ¯̄¤·µÖ

±£² ³è¥° ¤£̧² ¤ Ø ¦Ï©®£ Ò̄¦ù Ò̄¥£ ¯̈¥ ̄º ©®Ô¤¥Ø×Ö
± ëØ ¦¤Ï©®³Ø° ©Ô°£ ² ¤Ô£ ¦Ï£ ̄®Øº«

¹ ¯Ð£ ©ù ©ë¥° ®̄¤ ± Ï©̄Ð ®©´ ®¤¤Õ¤±́«¶¬ÊËÌÍ Î¶ ®©Ñ° ³Ñ©®ÔÒ¦è ®¥ Ò̄¤£í£ ¯Ð Ï£²²× ©² Ï
ººÊËÌÍ Îº ¤®Ñ£ ¦Ñ©̄©Ð ¤̄¦£ ¦¬ ®¤¦¥× ©̄¦³¼ ©¦¥ ¤®̄Ø ¤ÐÍ ÒÐ

¶Ø¼¼Æ «ð¥ ¥ ©² ®¤Ô² ©Ñ¤Ï¤̄¥¥ ®¤¤¦è ®Êõ¥ ®¤¤¦¥° ©¥ ©®¤Í ¤£ ¯̈®¤Ï§¤Ð
ÆùØÚ́Æ × ¤®¦£ Ñ©®£ ©Ñ©Ô£¥ ©¥ ©ñ× ² ³̈̄ÒÏÑ©Ô£¥ ©¥ ÒÏæ

×¼è ®Ïè² ©¥ ¦ úÖÊÌµ éº é× Ò®Ô² ¤± ©̄¥ ©̄© º ©®¤ÎÍ ©®Í ©®©¤£́ ®¤¥ ¤̄¥£ ̄©®¤©¦ Ô² Ò̈¦ úÖÊÌµ éº éÆ ©̄¥ ©´ ©®Í ©®©Æ ¤Ð ¤̈

ûûüûýüûþ ÿ��S��U��TS��P

ø¶É ×² ©̄¥ ïÒ©̄¥£¥£ ¤¦©®¤̈£ §¤̄è ®Ô² ©̄̄£ ¯̈ÔÒ®Ô¦¤¦©̄ÐÍ ©²² Ô©®Ó ¤¦¥£ Ï©¥ ¤¦̄² ³ é
º ̄¥ ®©Ñ¥ ®̄¤¤Ð ¦¥ Ð ë̄Ô² ©̄¥ ÑÒ̄¥ ©̄Ð£ ¦̄¥ ©²² ©²² Ô² ©̄¥ ¦¦° ë̄̄¥° ¤Ô² ©̄¦ é

çË Öð ò óò ÖÖò óõ «õ Ê« ðÊ Ëõ« ËËÖ

���U��T�U�

-32-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



	

��


������� � �� �� �� � ��������� !"�#��$%&' �(
)* +,-. /-* 0120130145 ���6 �78 9� � 8 �9:;4 <9= �>?@ABACD EFGHI JKLJMKNOLPQROSTURVSWLSKVXQYLVY HZI[\]^_\`a\bc\d]efgdhijkIjlmZGnoFjpoHoH qrsstuvwxyz{z|}~����z�~vwyz��t 3��� ���\b���\����������\��b�c

� ��� ��� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� �����  ��� ¡��� ¢� £ ¤� �¢¥¢��¦ §����¤���
©̈ª «ª «¬® °̄±²±³ª́ µ¶ µ¬´ µ·«©ª ¸¹ «̄ª µ«« ¨ ±°¬´ º±²²±ª ··ª »¬°µ¼ ¬·µ¬±°© µ̧´ ¬ª «½¾ ¿ÀÁ¾ «Â ÃÄ ° Ã

®́́ ¸´ ¬°«¬·µ´ ±ÅÅ¬°µ·̄«µµÆºµ̧°°© µ¹ª ±Ç µ°µ°ª ±® ·µ¬¬¼ «±²µ°·µµ« Ã
©̈ µ´ ¬¼ «º¬̧µ¬·µ¬ª ««µ̧¬·¬°µ¼ª °±© È¼ ·±É±µ«±Ä «ª ²ª́ ¬·Å¬°µ·̄«µÅª °©

«µ̧¬·¬°µª ··ª »¬°ª ±ºª ·º̄ª °« Ã ©̈ µ·µÅª́́³ µÁÊ¼ µµ̧²̄´ º© °±̧¼ ·µ««±°© µ¬·µ¬«°© ¬°¬·µ±°¹ª ±
Ç µ°µ°ª ±¬·µ¬« Ã¹ª ±Ç µ°µ°ª ±¬·µ¬«© ¬Ëµ²̄´ º© °© ¬°¼ ±µ«±°Ä́ ±¬° Ã

½ÌÍ µµ«© µµ°ÎÁ ¬¼ÎÏÄ ±·¼ µ°¬ª́ «¬¼ «̧µºªÄª º¬°ª ±« ÃÍ µµ«© µµ°ÎÁÄ ±·ª ··ª »¬°ª ±³ ¬«µ«º© µ¼ ¯´ µ Ã
ÐÌ̈©ª ««È«°µ²ª «¼ µ«ª »µ¼ °±±̧µ·¬°µÅª °© ²ª ª ²̄²½¾ÑÒÓ ¬°²ª ª ²̄²Ô¾ ¸ Ã« Ãª Ã¬°°© µ̧±ª °±Ä

º±µº°ª ± ÃÕÄ °©ª «º±¼ª °ª ±ª «±°²µ°º±°¬º°°© µÎ ¬¼ «º¬̧µ® ·º©ª °µº°Ä ±·̧±««ª³́ µ·µ¼ µ«ª » ÃÕÄ ·̧µ««̄·µ
µÆºµµ¼ «Ö×̧«ª ¬°̧±ª °±Ä º±µº°ª ±ª «°¬´́ ¬Øª́Ùª «Ô¾¾½Ê ·̧µ««̄·µ·µ»̄´ ¬°±· Ã©̈ µ«°¬°ª º̧·µ««̄·µ¬°°©ª «

«ª °µª «¬̧̧·±Æ ÃÚÐ «̧ª «±¬̧·µ««̄·µ·µ»̄´ ¬°±·Åª́́³ µ·µÂ̄ª ·µ¼ Ã©̈ µ·µª «¬µÆª «°ª »½Ê Å¬°µ·²µ°µ·°© ¬°Åª́́³ µ
«̄µ¼Ä ±·°© µª ··ª »¬°ª ±«È«°µ² Ã ÁÌ̈© µµ´ µº°·ª ºº±°·±´́ µ·«© ±̄¼́³ µ«µ°°±Å¬°µ·³ µ°ÅµµÔ Û¾¾ÒÓ ¬¼½½ Û¾¾ ¬ Ã² Ã°±¬Ë±ª¼ Å¬°µ·ª »¼ ·̄ª »

°ª ²µ«±Ä©ª »© µ·Åª ¼ ±·°µ²̧µ·¬°̄·µ¬¼ ·̧±»·¬²²µ¼ Åª °© ·µ̧µ¬°ºÈº´ µ«°±¬Ë±ª¼ ·̄±ÄÄ Ã©̈ª «ª «±°¬«
ª ²̧±·°¬°Ä ±·¼ ·ª °̧© ¬°ª «±°¬ÄÄ µº°µ¼³ È°© µÅª ¼ ÃÍ µ°ª ··ª »¬°ª ±«º© µ¼ ¯´ µ¬ºº±·¼ª »°±̧´ ¬°«Ü Å¬°µ·µµ¼ « Ã

ÏÌÇ ̄Ð µÆ°·¬º±°·±´ Åª ·µ«Ä ·±²°© µº±°·±´́ µ·°±°© µÄ ¬·µ¼ ±Ä µ¬º©́ µ»¬¼ °±°© µÄ ·̄°© µ«°© ±«µ³ª³ ¿
º±²ª »̧̄¬°µ¬º© Ë¬´ ËµÅª °© «±²µµÆ°·¬Åª ·µ¬´ ±»°© µÅ¬È«±Ë¬´ Ëµ«º±̄¼́³ µ¬¼¼ µ¼ªÄ µºµ««¬·Èª °© µ

Ä °̄̄·µ Ã ×Ì̈© µ·±̄°ª »±Äª ··ª »¬°ª ±ª́ µ«ª ««º© µ²¬°ª º±°© µ̧´ ¬ Ã¶ ±±°̧̄°Ë¬´ Ëµ«°±±º´ ±«µ°±°·µµ« ÃÍ °¬ÈÚÜ °±½¾Ü
¬Å¬ÈªÄ ±̧««ª³́ µ Ã¶ ±±°̧̄°̧·µ««̄·µª́ µ«̄¼ µ·°·µµ« ÃÕ «°¬´́́ª µ« ¿Ë¬´ Ëµ« ¿Â̄ª ºÙ º±̧̄´ µ·« ¿ª́ µ

ª °µ·«µº°ª ±«¬¼Äª °°ª »«¬¼ ¬È±°© µ·ª ··ª »¬°ª ±º±²̧±µ°«ª ̧´ ¬°ª »¬·µ¬«ª «°µ¬¼ ±Ä ̄¼ µ·̧¬Ëª »
Å© µµËµ·̧±««ª³́ µ Ã ÔÌ̈© µÅµ¬°© µ·²±ª °±·ª »«È«°µ²ª °© µº±°·±´́ µ·«Åª́́Ù µµ̧°© µ²Ä ·±²±̧µ·¬°ª »¼ ·̄ª »·¬ª µËµ°« Ã

ÖÌ¶ ·ª °̧̄³ª »°±³ µ«µº̄·µ¼ °±«±ª́ Åª °© °̄³ª »«°¬̧´ µ«ÁÄ µµ°¬̧¬·°ª ´ ±¬²«±ª́ °±Ù µµ̧ª́ µ«̧¬ºª »
º±«ª «°µ° Ã¶ ±̄³́ µ«°¬Ù µÄª °°ª »«¼ª ¬»±¬´́ È Ã ÚÌ® ̄²³ µ·±Ä ²¬̄¬ª́ «±´ ¬°ª ±Ë¬´ Ëµ«© ¬Ëµ³ µµ̧´ ¬ºµ¼ °© ·±̄»© ±̄°°© µª ··ª »¬°ª ±«È«°µ²«°±© µ´ ¸ª 

ª «±´ ¬°ª »̧¬·°«±Ä °© µª ··ª »¬°ª ±«È«°µ²Å© µ«µ¬·º©ª »Ä ±·´ µ¬Ù «ª °© µÄ °̄̄·µ ÃÓ ¬Ù µ°© µ²°© µ«¬²µ«ª Éµ¬«
°© µ̧·µ««̄·µª́ µ Ã©̈ µÈº¬³ µÒÝÞ³ ¬´́ Ë¬´ Ëµ« Ã ÀÌ̈ ·µµ«© ¬Ëµ«µ̧¬·¬°µª ··ª »¬°ª ±ºª ·º̄ª °« Ã ½¾ÌÕÄ µ´ µË¬°ª ±¼ ·±̧ª ±µºª ·º̄ª °±Ëµ·°© µ´ µ»°© ±Ä ±µºª ·º̄ª °±Ä¼ ·ª µ̧Æºµµ¼ «½¾Ä µµ°ª «°¬´́ º© µºÙ Ë¬´ Ëµ«

±°© µ¼ ·ª ¸ª́ µ ½½ÌÓ ¬Ù µ«̄·µÈ±̄¬·µ³ª¼¼ª »¬¼ª «°¬´́ª »̄«ª »°© µ²±«°·µºµ°̧´ ¬« ÃÝ µ·ªÄ ÈÅª °© °© µ´ ¬¼ «º¬̧µ
¬·º©ª °µº°°© ¬°È±̄© ¬Ëµ°© µ²±«°·µºµ°«µ°±Ä ¸´ ¬« Ã

½ÐÌ¶ ±Ü °°·µº©¼ µµ̧µÆ°°±«°·̄º°̄·µ«Åª °© ±̄°°© µ¬̧̧·±Ë¬´ ±Ä °© µ¬·º©ª °µº°«±°© ¬°È±̄Åª́́ ±°·µ²±Ëµ
³ µ¬·ª »«±ª́Ä ±·°© µ«°·̄º°̄·µ Ã ½ÁÌ̈© µ´ ¬¼ «º¬̧µº±°·¬º°±·ª «·µ«̧±«ª³́ µÄ ±·°© µº±«°±Ä ¬Èª ··ª »¬°ª ±Å¬°µ·¬̄¼ª °«·µÂ̄ª ·µ¼³ È°© µºª °È

¬Ä °µ·°© µª ··ª »¬°ª ±«È«°µ²ª «º±²̧´ µ°µ¼ Ã©̈ µº±°·¬º°±·ª «¬´ «±·µ«̧±«ª³́ µÄ ±·°© µº±«°±ÄÄª Æª »¬È
·̧±³́ µ²«°© ¬°°© µª ··ª »¬°ª ±¬̄¼ª °±·º±²µ«̧̄Åª °© ¬¼ «¬È«µµ¼Äª Æµ¼

ß ààá âãäá åæç åä èé

½ÌÍ µº̄·µ´ ¬·»µ·ÁêÏÊ¼ ·ª °̧̄³ª »½Ê³ µ´ ±Å»·¬¼ µÅª °© ÖÊ ±·½½Êë ì«© ¬̧µ¼ «°¬Ù µ«ÁÄ µµ°±ºµ°µ·±·º´ ±«µ·«±
°© ¬°°© µ°̄³ª »º¬³ µÄ ±̄¼ µ¬«ª́ È³ °̄¼ ±µ«±°«© ±ÅªÄ °© µ²̄´ º© »µ°«³ ·̄«© µ¼ ¬Å¬È ÃÞ ±Ëµ·°̄³ª »Åª °© «±ª́

¬¼ ²̄´ º© ¬¼ª «°¬´́ ²¬̄¬Ä́́ «̄© Ë¬´ Ëµ«¬°µ¼ «±Ä °̄³ª »¬¼ ²¬·Ù °© µ²«±°© µÈº¬³ µÄ ±̄¼ µ¬«ª́ È Ã
ÐÌÇ ̄´ ¬·»µ°̄³ª »º´ ±«µ°±̧´ ¬°«°±²ª ª ²ª Éµ´ µ»°© ±Ä «²¬´́ µ·½êÏÊ °̄³ª » ÃÍ µº̄·µµ²ª °°µ·«±ÁêÏÊ °̄³ª »

¬°̧´ ¬°·±±°³ ¬´́ « ÃØ© µµºµ««¬·È·̄«© ±·°´ µ»°© «±Ä½êÏÊ °̄³ª »Ä ·±²µ²ª °°µ·«°±̧´ ¬°·±±°³ ¬´́ « ÃÕ «°¬´́
«°¬Ù µ«±½êÏÊ °̄³ª »¬°½ÐÊ ±ºµ°µ·¬¼ º±Ëµ·°̄³ª »Åª °©½Ê ±Ä «±ª́ ¸´ «̄²̄´ º© Ã

ÁÌ® «°© µ̧´ ¬°¬¼ ¸´ ¬°·±±°³ ¬´́ª º·µ¬«µª «ª Éµ ¿°© µ´ ±º¬°ª ±«±Ä °© µµ²ª °°µ·«²¬Èµµ¼ °±³ µ¬¼í «̄°µ¼ «±
°© µÈ¬·µµËµ´ È«̧¬ºµ¼ ±Ëµ·°© µ·±±°³ ¬´́ Ã ÏÌÕ «°¬´́ ·̧µ««̄·µº±²̧µ«¬°ª »µ²ª °°µ·«î Åª °© ²ª ª ²¬¼́ªÄÄ µ·µºµª Ä́ ±Å³ µ°Åµµ½¾ÒÍÕ ¬¼Ï¾ÒÍÕÌ ¬°

µ¬º© ¸´ ¬°±·±±°³ ¬´́î ±°·ª »© °¬°«°µ²Ì Ãë «µ® »·ªÄª ²ÒÞÒ́ «̄î ·̧µ««̄·µº±²̧µ«¬°ª »µ²ª °°µ·«Ì Ãë «µ°© µ
±µ«°© ¬°½êÏ °̄³ª »º¬³ µº±µº°µ¼ °± Ãï °© µ·µ²ª °°µ·«²¬È© ¬Ëµ¬©ª »© µ·¼ª «º© ¬·»µ·¬°µ¬°«°¬·°̧̄

·µÂ̄ª ·ª »´ ¬·»µ·̧ª µ̧«ª Éµ« Ã ð ²ª °°µ·«º© µ¼ ¯´ µÛ ¨ Å±½ÑÒñ µ²ª °°µ·«¬°«²¬´́ «© ·̄³ «î µËµ°̄¬´ «ª ÉµÌÎÒ ¿ðò ¿ÎÓ ¿Î® ¿®ï ¿ÇÒ
©̈ ·µµ½ÑÒñ µ²ª °°µ·«¬°²µ¼ª ²̄«© ·̄³ «ÇÞ ¿Î¹ ¿¶Ý

óª Ëµ½ÑÒñ µ²ª °°µ·«¬°´ ¬·»µ«© ·̄³ «±·Ëª µ«î ±µÌ
Øª °© «© ·̄³ «°© ¬°© ¬Ëµ²̄´ °ª ¸´ µµ²ª °°µ·« ¿¸̄°«±²µ ¬°µ¼ »µ±Ä ·±±°³ ¬´́î ±°·ª »© °±«°µ²Ì ¬¼ «±²µ±̄° ̄¼ µ·Ä °̄̄·µº¬±̧È ÃÍ ¬̧ºµµ²ª °°µ·«µËµ´ Èª Ä °̄̄·µ

·±±°É±µ¬·µ¬ Ã ó ±·°·µµ«ª «°¬´́Ô ±µÑÒñ µ²ª °°µ·«º´ ±«µ°±¬¼ ±·±±°³ ¬´́
Åª °©½Ï ¬¼¼ª °ª ±¬´ ±µÑÒñ µ²ª °°µ·«±ÐÄ ±±°ÆÐÄ ±±°»·ª¼ ̄¼ µ·Ä °̄̄·µº¬±̧È

ô �� �  ��� ¡��� ¢�õ ¢� ��

ö ±µ½Ý ¬´ Ëµ«Á ¿Ö ¿À ¿½¾ ¿½½ ¿½Ð ¿½ × ¿½Ô ¿½À ¿ÐÁ ¿Ð ×Ñ ·ª¼¶ ·ª ¸ ¿²µ¼ Å¬°µ· ¿«̄ ¿³ª ±·µ°µ°ª ±ÔÚ Ã¾ÑÒÓÔ¾½Ú «Â ÃÄ ° Ã
ö ±µÐÝ ¬´ Ëµ½ ¿Ï ¿× ¿Ð½ ¿ÐÏ ¿Ð ÖÑ ·ª¼¶ ·ª ¸ ¿Î ±ÅÅ¬°µ· ¿«̄ ¿«© ·̄³½Á Ã×ÑÒÓÐ ÖÐ¾ «Â ÃÄ ° Ã

ö ±µÁÝ ¬´ ËµÐ ¿Ô ¿Ú ¿½Á ¿½Ú ¿Ð¾ ¿ÐÐ ¿ÐÔ¶ ·ª ¸´ ±ÅÅ¬°µ· ¿«̄ ¿°·µµ× ÃÚÑÒÓÀÐÚ «Â ÃÄ ° Ã
ö ±µÏÝ ¬´ Ëµ½ÏÇ µ»̄´ ¬·¼ ·ª ¸ ¿«© ·̄³ ¿´ ±ÅÐ ÃÚÑÒÓ½ÐÔÏ «Â ÃÄ ° Ã

Ó ¬Æ Ã® ¸̧ª́ µ¼Ø ¬°µ·®́́ ±Å¬ºµÐÁÐÞÞó ÁÔ Ã×Öð̈ Æ ÃÖÆ½¾ ¿ÀÁ¾ «Â ÃÄ ° ÃÆ ÃÔÐ Æ Ã¾¾½ÁÏ ÷ÐÁÐÞÞó ð «° ÃØ ¬°µ·ë «µÄ ·±²º¬´ º̄´ ¬°ª ±«±°©ª ««© µµ°½ ×ÖÞÞó
ø ¢� �ù� �� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��  ��� ¡��� ¢�� �¡���

Ç ¬ª ³ª ·¼ ìúóÍ µ·ª µ«¶ ·ª ¸ª́ µúó¶ ì¾À ì½Ð ÃÀÑÒÓ µ²ª °°µ·«½Ðª º© µ«¬̧¬·°
Õ «°¬´́́ª µÐ °±Ïª º© µ«Ä ·±²µ¼ »µ«

Õ ª́ µ¶ ·ª ¸Åª °© ¬̧·¬´́ µ¼́ ·ª ¸ª́ µ«½Ô °±½Úª º© µ«¬̧¬·°³ª ±·µ°µ°ª ±¬·µ¬«Åª °©Ä ¬«°¼ ·¬ª ª »«±ª́
Ç ¬ª ³ª ·¼ ìúóÍ µ·ª µ«¶ ·ª ¸ª́ µúó¶ ì¾Ô ì½Ú ÃÔÑÒÓ µ²ª °°µ·«½Úª º© µ«¬̧¬·°

Åª °© ¬̧·¬´́ µ¼́ ·ª ¸ª́ µ«½Úª º© µ«¬̧¬·°«© ·̄³ ¬¼ »·±̄¼ º±Ëµ·¬·µ¬«ª ·µ»̄´ ¬·«ª °µ«±ª́î º´ ¬È±·´ ±¬²Ì

ûûüûýüûþ ÿ��B��D��CB��? ���D��C�D�

-33-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



	
���	�  �� �� �� � ����������������� !" �#$% ���& �'( )� � ( �)*+$ ,)- �./012134 56789 :;<:=;>?<@AB?CDEBFCG<C;FHAI<FI 8J9KLMNOLPQLRSLTMUVWTXYZ[9Z\]J7^_6Z`_8_8 abccdefghijkjlmnopqrjsnfgijqrd tuvw xyuLRzy{L|v}y~{�u�~Lu�RvS

� ���� ����� ��� ���� �� �������

� ����� ����� ��� �������
�

� ���� �� ��� ����� �� �  �� ¡���¢
�������

�
£ ¤¥ ¦§¨ ©ª «¬ ®«¬̄ °«±±°« ² ³®µ́¶ ·̧¯ °«¹«º» ·°¼

� ������ �� �  �� ¡� ½
¾

¿ÀÁ¿ÂÃÀÄÅÆÇÈÆÉÊÂÈËÌÍÉÎÅÃ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÇÅÉÇÕ¿ÇÀÖ×ÆÇÕËËÌÖÉÈÀÉØ ÙÚÅÃÛÚØÖÃÌÉÎÁÉ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÚÉÄÎØÉÉÎÚÈÇÜÃËÅÈÀÄÉØÈËÝ¿ÀÄÁÆÇÈÆÉÂÈËÌÍÉÎÅÃÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÂÉÖÀÌÉÅÉÖÈÇÅÉÖÇÈÝÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÉÞ¿ÇËÝÅ¿ÉÇÎÉÖÊÕÉÄÅÉÖÉÎÃÄÌÃËÄÎÃÖÍÈÇÄßÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÅËÍÀÄÁÇÖÉÇÂÉÖÀÌÉÅÉÖÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÅËÍÀÄÁÈÇÅÉÖÇÈÕÃÄÄÉÕÅÀÃÄÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÝÅÇÖÅ ÌÇÈÉÇÎÇÂÅÉÖÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÝËÂÂÈÜ¿ÉÇÎÉÖÖÉÌÃÅÉÕÃÄÅÖÃÈ ØÀÈÅÉÖÇÄÎÂÖÆÆÇÈÆÉàÀÅ¿Î Ïá âÓÒÇãäã ÎÉÅÇÀÈ åÄÃÝÕÇÈÉ
ÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÝËÂÂÈÜ¿ÉÇÎÉÖÎ Ïá âÓÒÇãäÙ ÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÉÞ¿ÇËÝÅ¿ÉÇÎÉÖ ÇÖÉÇÂÉÖÀÌÉÅÉÖ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÅËÍÀÄÁÈÇÅÉÖÇÈÖÉÌÃÅÉÕÃÄÅÖÃÈ ØÀÈÅÉÖÇÄÎÂÖÆÆÇÈÆÉàÀÅ¿ ÙÚÅÃÛÚØÖÃÌÉÎÁÉÂÉÖÀÌÉÅÉÖÈÇÅÉÖÇÈÝÆÇÈÆÉÇÀÖ×ÆÇÕËËÌÖÉÈÀÉØÝÉÉÎÉÅÇÀÈÛÃØÛÕÃÄÄÉÕÅÀÃÄÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÝÅÇÖÅ ÌÇÈÉÇÎÇÂÅÉÖÕÃÄÄÉÕÅÀÃÄ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÝÅÇÖÅÂÈËÌÍÉÎÅÃÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜÈÀÄÉØÈËÝ¿ÀÄÁÆÇÈÆÉ ÊÕÉÄÅÉÖÉÎÃÄÌÃËÄÎÃÖÍÉÖÌæÍÈÇÄßÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÅËÍÀÄÁ ÎÉÅÇÀÈ åÄÃÝÕÇÈÉ

ÈÀÄÉØÈËÝ¿ÀÄÁÆÇÈÆÉ ÂÈËÌÍÉÎÅÃÂÆÕÃÖÂÃÈÜ ÇÖÉÇÂÉÖÀÌÉÅÉÖ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÈÇÅÉÖÇÈ ÕÃÄÄÉÕÅÀÃÄÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÝÅÇÖÅ ÌÇÈÉÇÎÇÂÅÉÖ ÉÞ¿ÇËÝÅ¿ÉÇÎÉÖ Å ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÅÉÉ ÆÇÈÆÉÊÂÈËÌÍÉÎÅÃ ¿ÀÁ¿ÂÃÀÄÅæÅ ÏÐÑÒÓ ÔÏÇÅÉÇÕ¿ÇÀÖ×ÆÇÕËËÌÖÉÈÀÉØ ÝËÂÂÈÜ¿ÉÇÎÉÖ ÆÇÈÆÉàÀÅ¿ ØÀÈÅÉÖÇÄÎÂÖÆÖÉÌÃÅÉÕÃÄÅÖÃÈÎ Ïá âÓÒÇãäÛ ÃÄÌÃËÄÎÃÖÍÉÖÌÍÈÇÄßÅËÍÀÄÁÕÉÄÅÉÖÉÎ ÎÉÅÇÀÈ åÄÃÝÕÇÈÉ
çªªèéêëìªìªèìí î ïªçìðéêëìª

ñ òòóôôõöõ ÷øóùô òö óõù úóøô úûòüú ý÷øöþ òÿ òö ó�õ ��úóóøô� óõ ø�õ �ô �ò� úõö òú

� �		
� ��� ���� ��� 	
� ��� � ��� ���� �������� �� ��� ��¢ �� �� ��� ����� ��  �� ¡�  �

� �����¼� ���  �� ¡� !

"õ ��òùõ ò� #óù #òúó�ò�ò$�õ �òô �þ òø�úõ ø%öþ ò� óõ ø�õ �ô&'ö ��õ ø%öþ óöõ ú� ��õ òô ý

"ùù ÷�öþ òú�ûûù (þ òóô ò�úóøô ò)þ ó�úöþ òóô ò�úüóø� òô �õ ûùõ øò

ô �òö ÷öþ òú�óùù #÷ù ��òúõ øöþõ úú(úö ò�*ù òúúöþ óø+,-./ ýÊ 0ÏÏÔ1á Ï2 ÏÒ 13æ
Ê 0ÏÏÔ1á Ï2 ÏÒ 13æ

Ê 0ÏÏÔ1á Ï2 ÏÒ 13æ
4

�
�

5 6789:;787;<;=>?@:AB 5CD 6789:EFG:>=HIFJ>KF=F?@>I@A=I7?K78> ?J9G9:DL@>>AI>KKF8=?J9G9:DL>KK?J9G9:ML87??K> NO 6789:K>8H@: P:7==>8QRI79SNTABDQ?J9G9:DL>KK EF@>I?IAAB9A88>9@7A8 U JFKJ>RAVE7@:RAK@A89AJ>I U7=@FH UFGI>W<7I>= PTABOQ?J9G9:ML87??K>NK>8H@: E7I> P9A7K>=5L 6789:K78>FIK>8H@:AB
?J9;F78K78>B787G:HIF=> =I7?K78>AIKF@>IFKK78> 9A8@IAKXA8>S7@ U IF78R7I=V9X 6LYZ 6?IB ?I>GG<I>I>H<KF@78HB7K@>IQN789K<=>GKBJ 6LYZJFKJ> P

¼��� ���[ �������� ���� �� ��AI?J9KF@>IFKK78> @:>I>:FG@AR>>8A<H:IAA;78@:> JFKJ>RAV@A9K>F8B7K@>IF8=G>IJ79> JFKJ>

ØÀÄÀÝ¿ÁÖÇÎÉ ãäÚÖÃËÄÎ ÆÇÈÆÉÍÃÞ ÇÀÖ×ÆÇÕËËÌ ÖÉÈÀÉØÆÇÈÆÉ \×ÛÚÌ ]ã×ÙÚØÖÉÎËÕÅÀÃÄ ÍËÝ¿ÀÄÁ Î ^Ó _ÒÓ ÔÏã̀äÙ åàÇÜ ÇÎÇÂÅÉÖÅÉÉ ÍÖÀÕßÝËÂÂÃÖÅÝ ÊÅ¿ÖÉÉæ \×ÛÚÕÖËÝ¿ÉÎ ÁÖÇÆÉÈÝËÌÂ Î ^Ó _ÒÓ ÔÏÅËÍÀÄÁÎ Ïá âÓÒÎÙaã ÝÉÕÅÀÃÄ åÄÃÝÕÇÈÉbÍÃÈÅÃÄÈÀÎ c de fg heii jdklmno pqrs ko tj u
v w� �x�� wy 	�z ��� ���� {| �w	� }y 	� ~� 	

�y 	}{� �{�� 	�����x 	w	��� ��y 	�}� ~�� w}y 	� ~� 	x �w	� {}~��	� �	��y 	� �

�� ����� ���� �� � �� ��� �� ��� ��� ����� ���� �� ��������� ��� ���� ������� ���� ����� ������ ���

  ¡ ¢¡ £ ¤¥¦2§̈4©ª32«¥/ ¬ª¦4©3«4

-34-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment A. Plans..pdf



-89--35-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-90--36-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-91--37-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-92--38-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-93--39-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-94--40-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-95--41-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-96--42-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-97--43-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



-98--44-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 6, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: 1550 McGregor Drive  #13-174  APN: 036-341-02 

Design Permit, Tree Removal Permit, and Coastal Development Permit for a public 
multiuse park in the PF/VS (public facilities/visitor serving) zoning district. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: City of Capitola 

 Representative:  Steve Jesberg 
 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The City owns a 4.1-acre lot at 1550 McGregor Drive located in the PF/VS (public facilities/visitor 
serving) zoning district.  The City is proposing a new multiuse public park which consists of a skate 
park, dog park, bike pump track, and children’s play area.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On July 25, 2013, the City Council directed staff to develop plans for a recreational facility on the City 
owned McGregor parcel.  The City Council requested that the plans include a skate park, dog park, 
and bike pump track.  The City hired Arnone & Associates to create conceptual plans for the City.  
The consultant prepared three plans which were narrowed to two plans after receiving input from the 
Chief of Police and the Public Works Department staff.  Three user groups composed of members of 
the public with specific interests in one of the three recreational uses were established to review the 
plans. The two remaining plans were then presented to the three user groups. Utilizing their input the 
plans were then reduced to one preferred plan. 
 
On November 14, 2013, the City Council reviewed the preferred conceptual site plan for the multiuse 
park.  During this review, the City Council directed staff to prepare documents based on the preferred 
conceptual site plan for Planning Commission review.    
 
The new multiuse public park was reviewed by the Architectural and Site Committee on December 11, 
2013.  Within the public facilities zoning district the development standards for height, setbacks, lot 
coverage, and landscaping are determined by the Architectural and Site Committee.   During the 
meeting, the committee reviewed the application and did not request any modifications to the 
submitted plans.   The following direction was provided:  
 

 Public Works Director Steve Jesberg is representing the City as the applicant on this project.  He 
introduced the plan to the committee.   

 City Architect Derek Van Alstine reviewed the site plan and did not request any modifications. 

-45-

Item #: 5.A. 1550 McGregor Drive.pdf



 

 City Landscape Architect.  Position was vacant. 

 Building Inspector Brian Von Son reviewed the site plan and did not request any modifications.   
 
DISCUSSION 
1550 McGregor Drive is located along the south side of McGregor Drive just east of the entrance to 
New Brighton State Beach and the Soquel Creek Water District pump house. The property abuts New 
Brighton State Beach to the south and the east, Soquel Creek Water District property to the west, and 
Route 1 to the north.  The South Pacific Railroad tracks wind through the state park and along the 
south property line of the project site.  The north half of the property that fronts McGregor Drive was 
previously utilized as a parking lot for Village shuttle riders and a staging area for large construction 
projects.  The new multiuse public park will be located within the footprint of the previously disturbed 
dirt lot on the property.  The rear portion of the property will not be disturbed.   
 
The multiuse park features a skate park, dog park, bike pump track, and children’s play area.  The site 
plan shows the location of the future uses within the park.  The site plan is conceptual and does not 
go to the level of detail to show exact location of jumps, rails, and tracks.  The site plan also identifies 
future parking, lighting, water, fencing, flat work, and public restrooms.    
 
The bicycle pump track is approximately 8,000 square feet in size and located in the northwest corner 
of the park.  Bicycle pump tracks have been growing in popularity over the past decade.  The dirt 
tracks consist of loops with set jumps, humps, and berms.  The dirt tracks vary in length and design to 
accommodate a variety of riders’ skills.  A three-foot-high split rail fence will be located along the 
street frontage and the western boundary of the pump track.     
 
The dog park will be located on the south end of the park.  The dog park entrance is located adjacent 
to the parking lot in the northeast corner.  There are five existing trees in this area that will provide 
shade for visitors to the park.  Improvements include two benches and a pet waste station.  The 
proposed surface of the park is bare soil.  The dog park will be enclosed with a 42” wood and wire 
fence with 4” x 4” redwood posts and galvanized 4” grid hog wire fencing. 
 
The children’s play area and seating node are located central to the park between the pump track and 
skate park.  The play area is approximately 1,000 square feet in size and will contain playground 
equipment.  The ground cover for the play area is bark mulch.  The children’s play area will be 
enclosed within a 3’ high split rail fence.  The seating node is slightly smaller than the children’s play 
area.  This area will include seating, a game table, drinking fountain, and trash/recycling receptacles.  
This area will be landscaped with 7 Laurus Nobilis ‘Saratoga’ trees and a mix of ornamental grass and 
perennials.   
 
The skate park is located along the street frontage adjacent to the parking area.  An engineered 
bioswale is located on the northwest corner of the skate park.  Two benches are proposed within the 
skate park.  There are 3 existing eucalyptus trees within the area of the skate park that will be 
removed.  A 4’ tall black vinyl clad chain link fence will enclose the skate park.  
 
Access and Parking 
Access to the park is located on the northeast corner of the property off of McGregor Drive.  The 
parking standards in the municipal code do not provide guidance for public parks.  The City hired 
Kimley-Horn and Associates to perform a trip and parking generation study for the McGregor Park 
(Attachment B).  The study identified that a minimum of 24 -26 spaces should be required.  There will 
be 30 spaces proposed within the parking lot, two of which comply with ADA standards.  Bicycle 
racks, portable restrooms, and drinking fountains are located near the entrance of the park off the 
parking area.   
 

-46-

Item #: 5.A. 1550 McGregor Drive.pdf



 

Landscaping 
Within the PF Zoning District, landscaping is reviewed to “ensure harmony with adjacent residential 
districts in accordance with architectural and site approval procedures.”  As mentioned previously, the 
site is surrounded by the New Brighton State Beach. There is no adjacent residential development.   
The park will be located on the disturbed area of the lot that was previously utilized as a parking and 
staging lot.  The natural vegetation in the rear portion of the lot will not be disturbed. 
 
A landscape and irrigation plan is included with the submittal.  The majority of new landscaping will be 
planted along the road frontage, in and around the seating and children’s area, and surrounding the 
parking lot.  There will be a mix of ground cover, perennials, and grasses.  The majority of the plants 
are native to the area.  The two non-native species will not be planted in areas abutting the 
surrounding native habitat areas.     
 
Tree Removal  
There are three eucalyptus trees located in middle of the lot in the location of the future skate park 
that will be removed.  By city ordinance, two replacement trees are required for each tree that is 
removed.  The landscape plan includes the planting of 7 Laurus Nobilis ‘Saratoga’ around the seating 
area.   
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15304of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor public alterations of land.  This project involves 
modifying a dirt parking lot into a multiuse park.  No structures are proposed on the site.  There were 
no adverse environmental impacts discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-174 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS: 
1. The project approval consists of a multiuse park in the PF/VS zoning district.  There are no 

structures proposed on site.  Improvements consist of flat work, fencing, landscaping, and 
lighting.  The proposed project is approved as indicated on the plans reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission on February 6, 2014, except as modified through conditions 
imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing.   

 
2. Prior to construction, final building plans shall be consistent with the plans approved by the 

Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements shall be completed according 
to the approved concept plans.  

 
3. Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet 

into the construction plans.  All construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works 
Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
4. The approved plans are conceptual and exact details of the individual uses will be developed 

prior to site improvements.  The approved concept plan with layout of the park is approved as 
reviewed by the Planning Commission on February 6, 2014.  Modifications must be specifically 
requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any 
significant changes to the conceptual layout of the site shall require Planning Commission 
approval.   
 

5. A final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by the Community Development 
Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning Commission approval and shall 
identify type, size, and location of species and details of irrigation systems.   

-47-

Item #: 5.A. 1550 McGregor Drive.pdf



 

 
6. A drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control plan, shall be submitted to the City and 

approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in compliance with the requirements specified 
in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

 

7.         The applicant shall submit a stormwater management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Public Works which implements all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and 
Public Works Standard Details, including all standards relating to low impact development 
(LID). 

 
8. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 

verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

9. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 
except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of 9 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. on weekdays. Construction 
noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work between 9 a.m. 
and 4 p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 
 

FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the multiuse park.  The public park project 
conforms to the development standards of the PF/VS (Public Facility/Visitor Serving) Zoning 
Districts.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the plans for the new multiuse park.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of 
the neighborhood. The proposed multiuse park compliments the surrounding New Brighton 
State Beach.  The park will be open to the public.  Access to the State Beach is not 
compromised by the new parks.   The park will add to the recreational uses within the 
immediate area, providing visitors of the park with additional recreation options.  

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15304 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15304 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor public alterations of land.  This project 
involves modifying a dirt parking lot into a multiuse park. There are no structures proposed 
within the project.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the 
proposed project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Trip Generation and Parking Study 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner 

-48-

Item #: 5.A. 1550 McGregor Drive.pdf



-49-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



-50-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



���������	�
����
	�����������
����� �	� �� ��� ��

���� ��� ��� ���  ! ��" # $���!% & �����" ' ��()% ��*��+ �),�)-� �. /�! 00  ��

�$-� �� -!! ��$-!! �1 �! - ($
2 ����34 /�! 05  ��

�/� & ��)��� (�/�- ��(�� ��- ,�)� �! - �" 2 �)6 ��7 �- )�" & ��$�! & ������. /�! 58  ��

���&- �� (���! *--1 �! - (�" 7 ���� ��� (�" 9 ��6 ����/��()% ��*��. /�! : )�

��# ��� ��� �! ,- ���! -1 ��)- ��
& �! -1 ��)- �7 ��� 4 /�! ..  ��

-% ; �- �% �(/! ��- �)�
7 ��-1 - �& ����; �- �4 /�! 5<  ��

! )�= �(�(�)�> -! - �" ? ���� �/�"
@ � = �(��! 4. /�! 8 )�

$�-+ (�! �)> ��/- ��- /�)�
A ���' ����4 /�! :B  ��

-51-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



���������	�
����
	������������
���� �	� �� ��� ��

���� ���������  ! ��"# $���!%& �����"' ��()% ��*��+ �),�)- ��. /�!00  ��

�$-� ��-!! ��$-!! �1 �!- ($
2 ����34 /�!05  ��

�/�& ��)��� (�/�- ��(�� ��- ,�)��!- �"2 �)6 ��7 �- )�"& ��$�!& ������. /�!58  ��

���&- ��(���! *--1 �!- (�"7 �������(�"9 ��6 ����/��()% ��*��. /�!: )�

��# ��� ��� �! ,- ���!-1 ��)- ��& �!-1 ��)- �7 ��� 4 /�!..  ��

-%; �- �% �(/! ��- �)�
7 ��-1- �& ����; �- �4 /�!5<  ��

! )�= �(�(�)�>-!- �"? �����/�"@ � = �(��!4. /�!8 )�

$�-+ (�! �)> ��/- ��- /�)�
A ���' ����4 /�!:B  ��

-52-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



-53-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



-54-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



-55-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-56-



§
Suite 250
100 West San Fernando
San Jose, California
95113

§
TEL   669-800-4131

October 2, 2013

Steve Jesberg – Director of Public Works
City of Capitola
420 Capitola Avenue
Capitola, CA 95010

Subject:  Trip & Parking Generation for McGregor Multi-Use Recreational Park

Mr. Jesberg,

The following information presents the trip and parking generation estimates for the three concept
scenarios of the McGregor Multi-Use Recreational Park consisting of skate park, pump track, dog
park, and children’s park combined uses.

This report utilizes the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) guidelines on trip and parking
generation found in the ITE publications “Trip Generation,” 9th Edition, 2012 and “Parking
Generation,” 3rd Edition, 2004, respectively. None of the proposed land uses for the multi-use
recreational park are specifically contained in ITE, thus, research of similar facilities are also
referenced for the estimations. Research results indicate that parking demand is calculated from trip
generation and vehicle occupancy.

From findings contained in the research and data from ITE, weekend daily trips would likely be
higher than an average weekday’s daily trips. However, the weekday peak hour would create a similar
peak demand than the weekend peak. Thus, the weekday PM peak hour was taken as the study period
for this analysis. Given that some trips, and thus parking spaces, will be utilizing more than one use
(dog park and skate park) at the multi-use recreational park, a 5% credit reduction of trips and
parking demand spaces were given to trip and parking generations in each concept.

Trip Generation

The trip generation details the estimated number of trips to be made to and from the park during the
weekday PM peak hour. Given the limitations of ITE rates and availability of research on related
facilities, there are key assumptions contained within the derived rates. The trip generation rates and
assumptions are noted below:

Skate Park & Pump Track
· The most similar ITE use is Land Use 465: Ice Skating Rink with a weekday PM peak rate

of 2.36 trips/thousand square feet (KSF). This rate was referenced for comparison within
the analysis.

· A weekday PM peak rate of 1.36 trips/KSF was found in both Reference 1 and Reference 2
and used for comparison within the analysis.

o Reference 1 and Reference 2 were relevant traffic impact studies on skate parks.

-57-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



Page 2

· The skate park and pump track were considered similar uses given the variety of uses
associated with the skate parks in the referenced studies, thus, were analyzed using the same
rates.

Dog Park
· A weekday PM peak rate of 1.43 vehicles/KSF with an arrival/departure percentage split of

50/50 was assumed for the dog park.
o This assumed rate includes the general standard noted by the Minneapolis Park &

Recreation Board Planning Staff of 700 SF/dog for an off-leash recreational area. It
also includes the assumption of 1 dog/vehicle given the lack of surrounding
pedestrian facilities in the proposed park’s vicinity along McGregor Drive.
§ (1 dog / .7 KSF) * (1 veh / 1 dog) = 1.43 veh/KSF

Children’s Park
· ITE Rates do not specifically contain the children’s play park use. Instead rates in similar

studies on recreational parks and combined family/dog parks were referenced (References 1
& 3) creating a range of 1.36 trips/KSF  to 1.43 vehicles/KSF. Thus, 1.43 vehicles/KSF
was used.

Parking Generation

The parking generation details the estimated peak period demand of parking spaces required of the
park during the weekday PM peak hour. Given the limitations of ITE rates and availability of
research on related facilities, there are key assumptions contained within the derived rates. The
parking generation rates and assumptions are noted below:

Skate Park & Pump Track
· The most similar ITE use is Land Use 465: Ice Skating Rink with a peak period parking

demand rate of 0.42 spaces/KSF. This use was referenced for comparison within the
analysis.

· A vehicle occupancy rate of 2.5 persons/vehicle was assumed and the peak hour trip
generation was used to estimate the parking demand.

o Reference 1 predicted that during skate park special events there is a 2.75
persons/vehicle occupancy. The McGregor proposed park is not analyzed for special
events, however, there is a lack of surrounding pedestrian facilities along McGregor
drive. Given these factors a rate of 2.5 persons/vehicle was assumed and the peak
hour trip generation was referenced to estimate parking demand.
§ Example: (1 vehicle/2.5 persons) * (17 persons)  = 7 vehicles.

Dog Park & Children’s Play Areas
· As the trip generation previously indicated, the dog and children’s park used the same rate.

Thus, 1.43 veh/KSF for the parking generation estimate was used.

The trip and parking generation tables detailing trip and parking estimates for each concept can be
found in Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2, respectively.

-58-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



Page 3

Findings

Concept 1
For Concept 1, the total proposed usable park area equates to 29,600 SF and the estimated range of
PM peak hour weekday trips is 41-63 trips (25 IN / 27 OUT). The estimated range of parking spaces
required is 20-23 spaces.

Concept 2
For Concept 2, the total proposed usable park area equates to 24,175 SF and the estimated range of
PM peak hour weekday trips is 34-45 trips (20 IN / 19 OUT). The estimated range of parking spaces
required is 24-26 spaces.

Concept 3
For Concept 3, the total proposed usable park area is estimated at 26,200 SF. The dog park and
optional children’s play areas were not directly provided so using the proposed surrounding land use
areas, these uses were estimated at 6,900 SF and 5,600 SF, respectively. The estimated range of PM
peak hour weekday trips is 37-50 trips (21 IN / 22 OUT). The estimated range of parking spaces
required is 24-26 spaces.

References

1. Center Avenue Skate Park Traffic Analysis, prepared by PCR Services Corporation, dated
January 2012.

2. Gun Range Remediation & Reuse Project Traffic Analysis prepared by Stantec Consulting
Services, Inc., dated March 2013.

3. Sixth Street Park District Dog Park: Parking Capacity Analysis, prepared by Minneapolis
Park & Recreation Board (MPRB) Planning Staff, dated September 2011.

4. Off-leash Dog Park Area Traffic Study: Cummings Family Neighborhood Park, prepared
by City of Folsom Parks & Recreation Department, dated April 2006.

-59-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



Page 4

Given the limitations within ITE and the availability of relevant sources of related facilities, the
estimates given for the trip and parking generations are only best approximations. Thus it is
recommended, as detailed in the tables, to design the proposed park for conservative numbers of trip
and parking generations.

You can contact me directly at 669-800-4146 to discuss any questions or comments you may have
regarding the information presented in this technical memorandum or the supporting tables.

Sincerely,

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Frederik Ventner, P.E.
(#64621)

-60-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



TRIP GENERATION RATES(A)
ITE Land Use Code /

Reference Units (SF) IN / OUT
Ice Skating Rink(B) ITE 465 2.36 0.45 / 0.55

Skate Park/Pump Track(C) References 1 & 2 1.36 0.47 / 0.53
Dog Park(D) References 3 & 4 1.43 0.50 / 0.50

Children's Park(E ) References 1 & 3 1.43 vehicles/KSF 0.50 / 0.50

Derived - ITE (465)
Pump Track 12,000 17 - 29 11 / 12
Skate Park 11,200 16 - 27 10 / 11
Dog Park 6,400 5 / 5

(2) - (3) (1) / (1)
29,600 41 - 63 25 / 27

Pump Track 4,500 7 - 11 4 / 5
Skate Park 6,600 9 - 16 6 / 6
Dog Park 7,475 6 / 5

Children's Park 5,600 5 / 4
(2) - (2) (1) / (1)

24,175 34 - 45 20 / 19
Pump Track 6,800 10 - 17 6 / 7
Skate Park 6,900 10 - 17 6 / 7
Dog Park(H) 6,900 5 / 5

Optional Children's Play Area(H) 5,600 5 / 4
(2) - (3) (1) / (1)

26,200 37 - 50 21 / 22
Notes:

References:

EXHIBIT 1
MCGREGOR MULTI-USE RECREATIONAL PARK

(3) Sixth Street Park District Dog Park: Parking Capacity Analysis , prepared by Minneapolis Park & Recreation Board (MPRB) Planning Staff, dated September

11
9

10
9

Total Concept 2 (Site Plan)

(4) Off-leash Dog Park Area Traffic Study: Cummings Family Neighborhood Park , prepared by City of Folsom Parks & Recreation Department, dated April 2006

(2) Gun Range Remediation & Reuse Project Traffic Analysis , prepared by Stantec Consulting Services, Inc., dated March 2013

(1) Center Avenue Skate Park Traffic Analysis , prepared by PCR Services Corporation, dated January 2012

Total Concept 3 (Site Plan)

10

(D) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the dog park use. Instead rates of similar studies on combined family/dog parks (References 3 & 4) were referenced and an
estimated rate of 1.43 vehicles/KSF with an arrival/departure percentage split of 50/50 was assumed. This estimated rate includes the general standard of a dog off-
leash recreational area of 700 SF per dog and a conservative estimate of 1 dog per vehicle given the lack of surrounding pedestrian facilities in the proposed park's
vicinity.

(A) ITE Trip Generation rates published by Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), "Trip Generation," 9th Edition, 2012.

(B) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the skate park use. Instead the most similar use, Ice Skating Rink (LUC 465), was referenced at a rate of 2.36 trips/KSF.

Total Concept 1 (Site Plan)
Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(G)

Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(G)

Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(G)

(H) For Concept 3, the proposed area of the dog park and optional children's play area were not provided by the Client. The areas for these uses were estimated based
off the proposed surrounding parcel areas.

(F) As the total peak hour trips was an estimated range, an average value from this range was given for peak hour trips IN and OUT

(C) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the skate park use. Instead rates in similar studies on skate parks were referenced (References 1 & 2) at a rate of 1.36
trips/KSF.

(G) Given that some trips would be utilizing more than just one use at the multi-use recreational park, a 5% credit reduction is assumed to account for these trips

(E) ITE rates do not specifically contain the children's play park use. Instead given rates of similar studies on recreational parks and combined family/dog parks
(References 1 & 3) were referenced creating a range of 1.36 trips/KSF to 1.43 vehicles/KSF. Thus, 1.43 vehicles/KSF was used.

trips/KSF

vehicles/KSF
trips/KSF

TRIP GENERATION

Weekday PM Peak Rate

Use

Weekday PM Peak Hour
Total Trips

Units (SF)
Average

IN(F) /
Average
OUT(F)

-61-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



PARKING GENERATION RATES(A)
ITE Land Use Code /

Reference Units (SF)
Ice Skating Rink(B) ITE 465 0.42

Skate Park/Pump Track(C) Reference 1 2.5
Dog Park(D) References 3 & 4 1.43 vehicles/KSF

Children's Park(E)  References 1 & 3 1.43

ITE (465) - Derived
Pump Track 12,000 17 6 - 7
Skate Park 11,200 16 5 - 7
Dog Park 6,400

(1) - (1)
29,600 20 - 23

Pump Track 4,500 7 2  -  3
Skate Park 6,600 9 3  -  4
Dog Park 7,475

Children's Park 5,600
(1) - (1)

24,175 24 - 26
Pump Track 6,800 10 3  -  4
Skate Park 6,900 10 3  -  4
Dog Park(G) 6,900

Optional Children's Play Area(G) 5,600
(1) - (1)

26,200 24 - 26
Notes:

References:

Derived Peak
Hour Trip
GenerationUse Units (SF)

Weekday PM Peak Hour
Total Spaces Required

11
9

Total Concept 2 (Site Plan)

10
9

PARKING GENERATION

Peak Period Demand Rate

(G) For Concept 3, the proposed square footage of the dog park and optional children's play area were not provided by the Client. The areas for these uses were estimated based off the
proposed surrounding parcel areas.

(D) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the dog park use. Instead rates of similar studies on combined family/dog parks (References 3 & 4) were referenced and an estimated rate of
1.43 vehicles/KSF with an arrival/departure percentage split of 50/50 was assumed. This estimated rate includes the general standard of a dog off-leash recreational area of 700 SF per
dog and a conservative estimate of 1 dog per vehicle given the lack of surrounding pedestrian facilities in the proposed park's vicinity.

(C) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the skate park use. Instead based on a similar study (Reference 1), a vehicle occupancy rate for skate parks of 2.5 persons/vehicle was used
given the derived peak hour trip generation.

(F) Given that some trips, and thus parking spaces, would be utilizing more than just one use at the multi-use recreational park, a 5% credit reduction is assumed to account for these
trips

(E) ITE rates do not specifically contain the children's play park use. Instead given rates of similar studies on recreational parks and combined family/dog parks (References 1 & 3)
were referenced creating a range of 1.36 trips/KSF to 1.43 vehicles/KSF. Thus, 1.43 vehicles/KSF was used.

10

Total Concept 1 (Site Plan)
Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(F)

Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(F)

Multi-Use Park Credit (5%)(F)

(4) Off-leash Dog Park Area Traffic Study: Cummings Family Neighborhood Park , prepared by City of Folsom Parks & Recreation Department, dated April 2006

(3) Sixth Street Park District Dog Park: Parking Capacity Analysis , prepared by Minneapolis Park & Recreation Board (MPRB) Planning Staff, dated September 2011

(1) Center Avenue Skate Park Traffic Analysis , prepared by PCR Services Corporation, dated January 2012

EXHIBIT 2
MCGREGOR MULTI-USE RECREATIONAL PARK

Total Concept 3 (Site Plan)

(B) ITE Rates do not specifically contain the skate park use. Instead the most similar use, Ice Skating Rink (LUC 465), was referenced with a peak period demand rate of .42
spaces/KSF GFA.

(A) ITE Parking Generation rates published by Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), "Parking Generation," 3rd Edition, 2004.

spaces/KSF
persons/veh

vehicles/KSF

-62-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf



  
 

      
PROJECT APPLICATION #13-174 

1550 McGREGOR DRIVE, CAPITOLA 
MIXED USE PARK 

 
 
 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
• The proposed project is located on public property adjacent to the entrance of New 

Brighton State Park.  The project will add to the recreation opportunities in the area.  It will 
not affect public access and coastal recreation areas negatively as it involves a new public 
park along the road frontage of McGregor Drive.  There will be no impact on public trails or 
beach access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 

-63-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 
the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 
• The proposed project is located adjacent to McGregor Drive, approximately 2,000 feet from 

the shoreline.  No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach.   
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• The publicly owned site has been utilized for parking and for construction staging.  The 
new park will be open to the public for recreation.   

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

• The proposed project is located on public property adjacent to New Brighton State 
Park.  The project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

• The proposed project is located on public property adjacent to New Brighton State 
Park.  The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to 

-64-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use 
areas.  The land will be utilized for public recreation.   
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

• No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 

-65-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

project 
  

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 
private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

• The project is a public mixed use park that is a visitor-serving recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities to recreate.     

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 
uses, where feasible. 

• The project involves a public recreation facilities. 
c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas 
shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for 
visitors. 

 
• The project involves a visitor-serving public recreation park on a parcel adjacent to the 

New Brighton state beach.  This is a selected point of attraction for visitors.    
 (D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision of public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of 
transportation and/or traffic improvements; 
 

• The project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of public 
and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or traffic 
improvements.  A parking and traffic study was completed to ensure that demand is 
met.   

 
(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 
• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 

Municipal Code.   
  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
• The proposed project is located on City property adjacent to the entrance to New Brighton 

State Park.  The project will not result negatively impact public landmarks and/or public 
views.  The project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s 
shoreline.   

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 
• The project has adequate water and sewer services. 

-66-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 
• The project is an outdoor recreation mixed use park.  No structures are proposed.   
 (D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 
• The project establishes a recreation mixed-use park.  GHG emissions for the project are 

projected at less than significant impact.  
 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
• The public park will not require any impact fees. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.   

 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 
• The project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection policies. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 

Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 
• Engineering plans have been included to ensure compliance with applicable erosion 

control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 
• The project is a park.  There are no buildings proposed.     

 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 
• A certified engineer has reviewed all plans for compliance with geological, flood and fire 

hazards.   
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  
• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 

  

-67-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf



  
 

(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 
• The public park is consistent with the Public Facilities/Visitor Serving zoning district.  
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 
• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 

project development review and development procedures. 
 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 
• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-68-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. January 16, 2014 Draft Planning Commission meeting minutes.
	[1-16-14 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. 1440 41st Avenue#13-182 APN: 034-111-50
	[1440 41st Avenue.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Floor Plan and Elevation.pdf]
	Design Permit application for an exterior remodel of the existing Verizon Wireless storefront located at 1440 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Richard StarrRepresentative: Donald Graham, filed: 12/30/2013

	B. 4200 Auto Plaza Drive #13-020 APN: 034-141-30 and 31
	[4200 Autoplaza Drive.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plans..pdf]
	[Attachment B. March 7, 2013 Approval.pdf]
	Amendment to Design Permit, Conditional Use Permit, and Sign Program as part of a project to demolish an existing car dealership building and construct a new car dealership building, including a service building, carwash, and parking lot improvements in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Charles Canfield, filed 1/24/2014Representative: Bob Fischer


	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 1550 McGregor Drive #13-174 APN: 036-341-02
	[1550 McGregor Drive.pdf]
	[Attachment A Site and Landscape Plan.pdf]
	[Attachment B Parking and Traffic Study.pdf]
	[Attachment C Coastal Findings.pdf]
	Design Permit, Tree Permit, and Coastal Development Permit for a public park (skate, dog, and children’s park) in the PF/VS (public facilities/visitor serving) zoning district.
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Owner: City of Capitola 
Representative: Steve Jesberg


	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

